

ISO/DTS 24665:2023(E)

ISO/TC 83/SC 4/WG 2

Secretariat: DIN

Date: 2023-03-09/05-02

**Playground and recreational areas — Framework for the
competence of playground inspectors and playground
maintenance technicians**

iTeh STANDARD PREVIEW
(standards.iteh.ai)

ISO/DTS 24665

<https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/2b05ad2a-8802-a4be9-8682-f36a75252013/iso-dts-24665>

DTS **FDIS** stage

Warning for WDs and CDs

This document is not an ISO International Standard. It is distributed for review and comment. It is subject to change without notice and may not be referred to as an International Standard.

Recipients of this draft are invited to submit, with their comments, notification of any relevant patent rights of which they are aware and to provide supporting documentation.

iTeh STANDARD PREVIEW (standards.iteh.ai)

ISO/DTS 24665

<https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/2b05ad2a-882a-4be9-8682-f36a75252013/iso-dts-24665>

© ISO 2023

All rights reserved. Unless otherwise specified, or required in the context of its implementation, no part of this publication may be reproduced or utilized otherwise in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying, or posting on the internet or an intranet, without prior written permission. Permission can be requested from either ISO at the address below or ISO's member body in the country of the requester.

ISO copyright office
CP 401 • Ch. de Blandonnet 8
CH-1214 Vernier, Geneva
Phone: + 41 22 749 01 11
Email: copyright@iso.org
Website: www.iso.org

Published in Switzerland

iTeh STANDARD PREVIEW (standards.iteh.ai)

ISO/DTS 24665

<https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/2b05ad2a-882a-4be9-8682-f36a75252013/iso-dts-24665>

Contents

Foreword	vi
Introduction.....	vii
1 Scope	1
2 Normative references.....	1
3 Terms and definitions	1
4 Inspection.....	4
4.1 General	4
4.2 Other inspection activities	5
4.2.1 General.....	5
4.2.2 Post-incident/accident inspection.....	5
4.2.3 Pre-installation consultation.....	5
4.2.4 Mid-installation surveillance.....	5
4.3 Inspection report	5
4.3.1 Scope of work between the inspector and the purchaser of the inspection service.....	5
4.3.2 General information.....	6
4.3.3 Inspection outcome.....	6
4.3.4 Quality of inspection report.....	7
4.4 Inspector competence.....	7
4.5 Levels of competence for inspection and maintenance	8
4.6 Learning goals for level 3 inspectors.....	10
4.6.1 General.....	10
4.6.2 Standards / technical reports	11
4.6.3 Risk analysis / benefit-risk analysis.....	11
4.6.4 Technical production.....	11
4.6.5 Child development.....	12
4.6.6 Environmental issues / layout design.....	12
4.6.7 Knowledge of legal requirements	12
4.7 Cooperation with other parties.....	12
4.7.1 General.....	12
4.7.2 Code of conduct and ethics.....	13
5 Maintenance and repair	15
5.1 General	15
5.2 The importance of maintenance in relation to injury prevention.....	15
5.3 Types of maintenance	16
5.3.1 General.....	16
5.3.2 Routine maintenance.....	16
5.3.3 Corrective maintenance	16
5.4 Maintenance schedule.....	17

5.5	Record keeping	17
5.6	Regional and/or cultural differences regarding maintenance.....	17
6	Conclusion.....	18
Annex A (informative) Introduction to children's play and development.....		19
Annex B (informative) Risk assessment.....		20
B.1	Risk assessment.....	20
B.2	Advantages of risk assessment.....	21
B.3	Benefit-risk assessment	22
Bibliography		24

iTeh STANDARD PREVIEW
(standards.iteh.ai)

ISO/DTS 24665

<https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/2b05ad2a-882a-4be9-8682-f36a75252013/iso-dts-24665>

Foreword

ISO (the International Organization for Standardization) is a worldwide federation of national standards bodies (ISO member bodies). The work of preparing International Standards is normally carried out through ISO technical committees. Each member body interested in a subject for which a technical committee has been established has the right to be represented on that committee. International organizations, governmental and non-governmental, in liaison with ISO, also take part in the work. ISO collaborates closely with the International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC) on all matters of electrotechnical standardization.

The procedures used to develop this document and those intended for its further maintenance are described in the ISO/IEC Directives, Part 1. In particular, the different approval criteria needed for the different types of ISO documents should be noted. This document was drafted in accordance with the editorial rules of the ISO/IEC Directives, Part 2 (see www.iso.org/directives).

~~Attention is drawn to the possibility that some of the elements of this document may be involved in patent rights. ISO takes no position concerning the evidence, validity or applicability of any claimed patent rights in respect thereof. As of the date of publication of this document, ISO had not received notice of (a) patent(s) which may be required to implement this document. However, implementers are cautioned that this may not represent the latest information, which may be obtained from the patent database available at www.iso.org/patents. ISO shall not be held responsible for identifying any or all such patent rights. Details of any patent rights identified during the development of the document will be in the Introduction and/or on the ISO list of patent declarations received (see).~~

Any trade name used in this document is information given for the convenience of users and does not constitute an endorsement.

For an explanation of the voluntary nature of standards, the meaning of ISO specific terms and expressions related to conformity assessment, as well as information about ISO's adherence to the World Trade Organization (WTO) principles in the Technical Barriers to Trade (TBT), see www.iso.org/iso/foreword.html.

This document was prepared by Technical Committee ISO/TC 83, *Sports and other recreational facilities and equipment*.

Any feedback or questions on this document should be directed to the user's national standards body. A complete listing of these bodies can be found at www.iso.org/members.html.

Introduction

Based on a review of many international playground and recreation area standards, it is clear that there is a broad spectrum of competence in inspectors of playground environments that goes beyond just the black and white application of the various performance requirements found in current playground standards. Many maintenance and repair tasks can be easily identified and corrected with some very basic knowledge, experience, and skills. However, with the many elements involved in the playground environment, such as equipment, environment, children, etc., an inspection of a playspace is not solely a “technical” inspection but also requires knowledge of how and why children of all abilities play. Inspectors should understand the way children play, interact, evolve, and develop to be able to make informed, balanced decisions about the safety of the playground environment. There is international consensus among experts to describe the needed competences of playground inspectors and technicians in the public playground environment. For maintenance technicians—this document intends to harmonize the intent of the different levels of inspections commonly being performed around the world.

As stated in EN 1176-1: “Risk taking is an essential feature of play provision and of all environments in which children legitimately spend time playing. Play provision should aim to offer children the chance to encounter acceptable risks as a part of a stimulating, challenging and controlled learning environment. Play provision should aim at managing the balance between the need to offer risk and the need to keep children safe from serious harm.” The aim should be to provide as much play value as possible and as little safety as necessary. In this vision on the safety of playground environments it is essential that the inspector and maintenance technicians do not only know the technical content of the related standards, but at a certain level of expertise also understand why and how to make risk assessments and/or a benefit-risk analysis.

The way in which children play and the public perception of children’s play varies from country to country and, with this in mind, it is vital that the inspector and technician are aware of the cultural differences that exist. They need to be familiar with what is an acceptable level of risk or challenge for the country in which they are employed or contracted. Cultural and socioeconomic differences cannot and can never be an argument to withhold children from a beneficial risk/challenge while playing in a reasonably safe environment.

This document accepts that there may be variations in working practices in different countries. Irrespective of established systems, inspectors need to have necessary competence to undertake the tasks.

The lack of safety knowledge by some product and layout designers cannot be compensated for by the expertise of inspectors or maintenance technicians. Owners/operators of one or more playgrounds have the responsibility for all operational aspects of the playspace and will need to have or acquire competency and knowledge. Installers will have to have correct detailed technical documents to work with as well as a basic level of knowledge about safety which can help to solve problems arising during installation. Manufacturers should have a high level of knowledge. In general, safety relates to everything from the inception of a playground project to the end of its lifecycle.

Staff training is vital to the success of a comprehensive program of playground management. The users of this document are encouraged to take this information and share it with everyone involved in the management and day-to-day operation of a public playground. The contents provide a road map for success in achieving well managed public playground environments, but, like any map, one needs to learn how to read it and understand the various keys and symbols found on the map.

Inspection and maintenance/repair are equally important; when implemented together they create a safer, clean, and functioning playground environment free of hidden dangers and known hazards that only a trained playground safety inspector and playground maintenance technician can identify and one that children deserve.

Timely and thorough inspections coupled with the application of proper routine and preventive maintenance practices should be considered standard operating procedures. This action requires trained

persons with knowledge and experience in not just how to do something but also why it is required and when it is to be done to meet the manufacture/designer requirements for correct functionality and injury prevention. While knowledge is most important it also requires a certain amount of skill which comes with experience and additional training.

Regardless of the quantity or quality of these routine visual and operational playground inspections some playground owners ~~may~~ have licensing or legislated inspection requirements for specific types of play areas. Some types of playground inspections ~~may~~ require specific inspector education or certification in order to conduct these inspections. As an example, in Ontario Canada it is a commercial childcare center's licensing requirement to conduct an annual playground inspection including the testing of the impact attenuating surfacing. This type of annual inspection is becoming more common whenever the owner has been determined to have a higher duty of care. As a result, the owner requires a higher level of inspector competency and experience. An annual comprehensive inspection includes a thorough review of the entire playground environment, the playground equipment, the performance of the impact attenuating surfacing, and a discussion with the owner as to the playground's ability to meet the original intended goals and objectives of the owner's initial playground plan. As part of the annual comprehensive inspection report, the inspector should be looking for visual evidence that the owner has been conducting routine safety inspections and has performed regular custodial and preventive maintenance throughout the year. Playground owners are required to retain written records related to the installation, maintenance, repair, and inspections of each playground. To facilitate the record keeping, many equipment and surface system manufacturers provide forms and checklists. The inspector should review the owner's written inspection and maintenance records looking for visual and written evidence of routine playground maintenance practices. The playground owner cannot effectively maintain and repair the playground without access to these records. Therefore, the annual comprehensive inspection should be able to illustrate the playground owner's diligence in meeting emerging trends in usage while still meeting the minimum requirements for written documentation and record keeping as specified in the applicable local standards and guidelines.

Irrespective of how effective the playground inspection and maintenance program are there will likely be an incident that results in a serious injury to a playground user. How a playground accident investigation is addressed can make a big difference in the overall liability exposure of the playground owner or operator. An incident investigation should focus on cause or cascade of causes which can lead to prevention of similar injuries. Sound investigation can aid in litigation defence. Good risk management/loss control practices detail what to do in the event of an accident. The owner/operator should make sure there is an accident/incident procedure in place. If not, one should be prepared with the assistance of the owner's appropriate legal adviser to provide incident management. The policy or procedure should be approved by the appropriate authority and published as part of the standard playground operating procedures. This procedure should include an accident/incident report form and the appropriate staff should be trained on how to complete the form. This staff training should include appropriate content of verbal or written statements taken from witnesses or ones that ~~may~~ be made to the injured party, witnesses, and the media. The last thing the owner/operator needs is for an employee to make a statement that ~~may~~ be perceived as an admission of liability.

By following this document, the playground owner can implement the necessary steps to assure their playground inspectors and maintenance technicians have the necessary competencies required by persons conducting the various levels of inspections and maintenance/repairs previously mentioned and as documented in PD CEN/TR 17207:2018. It is recognized that different countries and jurisdictions ~~will~~ have cultural, technical, and legal differences that play an important role in the provision of inspections, maintenance, repairs, replacement, and removal of recreation and play equipment and components.

Users of this document should familiarize themselves with the vocabulary commonly used in the field of playground performance. Without an understanding of the vocabulary, the ~~owner~~owners/operators, inspectors, and maintenance technicians will find themselves at a disadvantage when it comes to reading, writing or communicating issues that ~~could~~ have serious consequences to the users of the playspace.

Although the focus of this document is specific to the public playground and the space in which it is situated, the information and principles can be generally applied to other aspects of public play and

recreation features such as waterplay (splashpads), skateboarding, outdoor fitness, etc. that are found in public access settings.

iTeh STANDARD PREVIEW (standards.iteh.ai)

ISO/DTS 24665

<https://standards.iteh.ai/catalog/standards/sist/2b05ad2a-882a-4be9-8682-f36a75252013/iso-dts-24665>

Playground and recreational areas — Framework for the competence of playground inspectors and playground maintenance technicians

1 Scope

This document gives guidance and requirements for the education, examination and evaluation of the inspectors' and maintenance technicians' competence concerning public playground and recreational areas. This document describes the knowledge and competence required for each specific task an inspector or technician performs.

This document is intended primarily for public playgrounds, but the principles are applicable to other recreational areas.

This document does not include benefit/risk assessment methods.

This document does not cover the competence of staff conducting product certification.

NOTE 1 The different types of inspections covered are: routine visual inspection; operational inspection; annual main inspection; post-installation inspection; post-accident inspection; pre-installation consultation; mid-installation surveillance.

NOTE 2 This document can be applicable to: ~~Roller~~roller-sport infrastructure; ~~Multi~~multi-sport arenas; ~~Outdoor~~outdoor exercise equipment; ~~Bouldering~~bouldering walls (~~Portable~~; portable and permanent socketed goals; ~~Parkour~~parkour facilities; ~~Adventure~~adventure playgrounds; ~~Ropes~~ropes courses; ~~Inflatable~~inflatable play equipment.

2 Normative references

The following documents are referred to in the text in such a way that some or all of their content constitutes requirements of this document. For dated references, only the edition cited applies. For undated references, the latest edition of the referenced document (including any amendments) applies.

ISO/TR 20183, *Sports and other recreational facilities and equipment* — ~~Injury and safety definitions and thresholds~~ — ~~Guidelines for their inclusion in standards~~

3 Terms and definitions

For the purposes of this document, the terms and definitions given in ISO/TR 20183 and the following apply.

ISO and IEC maintain ~~terminological~~terminology databases for use in standardization at the following addresses:

— ISO Online browsing platform: available at <https://www.iso.org/obp>

— IEC Electropedia: available at <https://www.electropedia.org/>

3.21

inspector

competent person (3.3) qualified to undertake inspections of playground environments (3.12)

3.32

competence

ability to apply knowledge (3.15) and skills to achieve intended results

[SOURCE: ISO/IWA 26:2017, 3.9]

ISO/DTS 24665:(E)

3.4.3

competent person

person who has acquired through training, qualifications or experience, or a combination of these, the *knowledge* (3.15) and skills enabling that person to perform a specified task

[SOURCE: ISO 17842-1:2015, 3.6]

3.4

routine visual inspection

inspection intended to identify obvious hazards that can result from normal use, vandalism or weather conditions

NOTE Note 1 to entry: Typical hazards can take the form of broken parts or broken bottles.

3.5

operational inspection

inspection, more detailed than *routine visual inspection* (3.4), to check the operation and stability of the equipment

NOTE Note 1 to entry: Typical checks include an examination for wear, rotting and corrosion.

3.6

annual main inspection

inspection intended to establish the overall level of *safety* (3.18) of equipment, structural stability, foundations and playing surfaces

NOTE Note 1 to entry: This inspection is to include the determination of ~~compliance~~ *conformity* with the relevant local standards and codes.

NOTE Note 2 to entry: Typical checks include the effects of weather, evidence of rotting or corrosion and any change in the level of safety of the equipment as a result of repairs made, or of added or replaced components.

3.7

pre-installation ~~Consultation~~ consultation

meeting intended to assess the design and layout of the area prior to building works commencing

3.8

mid-installation ~~Surveillance~~ surveillance

inspection undertaken to review work in progress during installation, especially features that cannot be easily checked or corrected after completion of the project

3.9

post-installation inspection

inspection undertaken prior to the opening of a *playground environment* (3.12) for public use

3.10

post-accident inspection

inspection undertaken after a *serious injury* (3.24) on a playground to assess the *safety* (3.18) of the area and to ~~help~~ assist in determining if any immediate works are required, with the intent of providing positive feedback on prevention of a similar occurrence

3.11

inspection report

document produced as a result of an inspection to a predetermined or agreed specification